
 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Agenda (January 14, 2016) Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

January 14, 2016 7:00 PM  

NEWBERG PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING   

401 EAST THIRD STREET 

 
 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

III. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR If the Planning Commission elects to follow their usual 

rotation based on seniority then Allyn Edwards is in line for Chair. The Vice Chair position will need to 

be discussed. 
 

III.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (5-minute maximum per person – for items not on the agenda) 

 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR (items are considered routine and are not discussed unless requested by the 

commissioners) 

1. Approval of December 10, 2015  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

VI. LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING (complete registration form to give testimony - 5 minute 

maximum per person, unless otherwise set by majority motion of the Planning Commission)  

   

1. TSP Amendments related to the Phase 1 Bypass – This hearing is continued from the 

December 10, 2015 Planning Commission hearing at the point of deliberation. 

a. Changes to the road and lane configuration of southbound Oregon 219 from north of the 

Springbrook Road/Industrial Parkway intersection through the Phase 1 Bypass/Wilsonville 

Road intersection.  RESOLUTION NO. 2015-310 

 

b. Changing the adopted Oregon 219/Phase 1 Bypass/Wilsonville Road intersection to a “No 

Thru Traffic” design.  RESOLUTION NO. 2015-311 

FILE NO.:  CPTA-15-002   

 

2. Development Code Amendment Medical Marijuana Grow Sites, Processors and Dispensaries. 
The proposal: 

 Allows medical marijuana grow sites in residential zones (R-1, R-2, R-3) as permitted uses 

and as conditional uses in all other zones. 

 Adds definitions for medical marijuana grow sites, medical marijuana processors and 

modifies a footnote description for medical marijuana dispensaries. 

 Allows medical marijuana processers as a permitted use in all industrial zones (M-1, M-2, M-

3, M-4, AI, SD/E). 

FILE NO:  DCA-15-002 

  

VII. ITEMS FROM STAFF 

1. Update on Council items 

2. Other reports, letters or correspondence 

3. Next Planning Commission meeting: February 11, 2016 7:00 PM  
 

VIII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 1 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Agenda (January 14, 2016) Page 2 of 2 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

FOR QUESTIONS, PLEASE STOP BY CITY HALL OR CALL 503-537-1240, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPT. – P.O. BOX 970 – 414 

E. FIRST STREET 
 

ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the Community 

Development Department of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible as and no 

later than 48 business hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the Planning Secretary at (503) 554-7788. For TTY 

services please dial 711. 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 2 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 1 of 13 

NEWBERG PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

December 10, 2015, 7:00 PM 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING (401 E. THIRD STREET) 
 

 

 Chair Gary Bliss called the meeting to order at 7: 00 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Gary Bliss, Chair                 Jason Dale     
 Philip Smith                         Matthew Fortner   
 Cathy Stuhr                          Luis Saavedra/student   
 Allyn Edwards                     Patrick Johnson  
 
Staff Present: Steve Olson, Associate Planner  
 Doug Rux, Community Development Director 
 Bobbie Morgan, Planning Secretary  
 Kaaren Hofmann, City Engineer 
   
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:   

1. Approval of November 12, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

Chair Gary Bliss said in the minutes the vote was written as 3-0, but it should be 4-0. 
 

MOTION:  Commissioner Cathy Stuhr moved to approve November 12, 2015 minutes as amended. 
Seconded by Commissioner Jason Dale and passed 7-0. 

 
LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING:  Chair Gary Bliss opened the public hearing at 7:02 pm. 
 

TSP Amendments related to the Phase 1 Bypass 
FILE NO.:  CPTA-15-002  
  
 RESOLUTION NO: 2015-310: Changes to the road and lane configuration of southbound 

Oregon 219 from north of the Springbrook Road/Industrial Parkway intersection through 
the Phase 1 Bypass/Wilsonville Road intersection.  
 

 RESOLUTION NO: 2015-311: Changing the adopted Oregon 219/Phase 1 Bypass/Wilsonville      
Road intersection to a “No Thru   Traffic” design.  

 
Chair Gary Bliss explained the hearing procedures. 
 
Call for Abstentions and Objections to Jurisdiction:  None. 
 
Chair Gary Bliss declared that he had a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering and was licensed 
in three states, Oregon, California, and Washington. All of these licenses had been retired. He was very 
familiar with the subject road system and had traveled Wilsonville Road many times over the last ten 
years. He had recently driven Wilsonville Road and looked at the possible impacts to Fernwood, Corral 
Creek, and Renne Roads. He also met with someone who lived in the south west corner of Corral Creek 
and Fernwood, PC Cathy Stuhr, who helped him measure the lane width of Fernwood. His findings were 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 3 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 2 of 13 

the following:  the distance between Highway 219 and Renne and Wilsonville Roads was 1.7 miles and 
the distance taking the Bypass route was 2.9 miles or 71% longer. Wilsonville Road had widths of 9.5 feet 
average and 0 to 3 feet of shoulder. Fernwood also had 9.5 foot widths average with no shoulders 
between the golf course and Corral Creek Road. Corral Creek Road was 9 feet wide with minimal to no 
shoulders. Renne Road had 8.5 foot wide widths and no shoulders. Both Wilsonville and Renne Roads had 
90 degree S curves where Wilsonville Road’s curves were lightly less severe and were wider. There was a 
large tree at the intersection of Wilsonville and Renne that was 24 inch diameter and was adjacent to the 
edge of the pavement. Opposite the tree was a ditch with the bank adjacent to the edge of pavement. The 
intersection of Renne and Wilsonville Roads had no radiuses and was narrow with a ditch at the edge. 
The intersection of Renne and Corral Creek Road was not at a right angle, but was more of a 135 degree. 
The traffic approaching southeast Corral Creek Road had minimal sight distance for drivers. The landing 
on Renne Road at Corral Creek was on a steep incline. He traveled the three routes from 219/Wilsonville 
intersection to I-5 via Mckay Road, via Wilsonville Road, and via Tualatin-Sherwood/99W/Springbrook 
Road. He believed he could listen to all testimony given, had read all the facts in the packet, and could 
make an unbiased decision on this matter. 
 
PC Cathy Stuhr disclosed that the Planning Commission in Newberg allowed one member to live outside 
of the City within a mile of the City limits or Urban Growth Boundary. That person was currently her and 
she represented the rural areas. She lived on the corner of Fernwood and Corral Creek Road. She drove 
these roads often and was familiar with the conditions Chair Bliss was describing. She spent a lot of time 
reviewing the information and shared a lot of concerns about the situation. She thought she could look at 
this issue fairly and make a good decision.  
 
Staff Report:  The staff presentation was given by CDD Doug Rux. The case before the Commission was 
an application from the Oregon Department of Transportation for an amendment to the City’s 
Transportation System Plan. The first component was changing the lane configuration on Highway 219 
going southbound between Springbrook Road and the Bypass. The second component was the Highway 
219/Wilsonville Road Bypass intersection itself. There were two resolutions dealing with each 
component, but were being done under one hearing. Regarding the first component, a safety issue was 
identified due to the double left hand turns coming off of Springbrook onto Highway 219 and the lane 
weave to get to the right lane and people could get trapped as the length was not long enough to allow 
people time to get over. The proposal was to drop one of the two southbound lanes and reduce some of 
the right-of-way width. Regarding the second component, ODOT requested modifying the intersection 
design of the Bypass, Highway 219, and Wilsonville Road. A modification was approved in 2013, but the 
Ladd Hill Neighborhood Association had concerns about the through movement from Wilsonville Road to 
the Bypass. ODOT received direction from their top management that they needed to stay on time and 
budget for the project and to stay within the existing right-of-way that was already laid out because it 
could increase costs for land acquisition or utility relocation. Staff had discussed eight different 
alternatives with ODOT and he described each one. For the first option all through movements would be 
allowed in the TSP and could be built in the original right-of-way that was already there and had no 
construction delays or utility relocations. Option 8 was what ODOT was requesting which would restrict 
the east/west movement across Highway 219 and could result in increases to construction schedule and 
timing, but had no construction delays or utility relocations. There were 50 cars in the pm peak hour 
going east/west which could average 500 trips per day. Restricting the east/west movement could lead 
to people making U-turns and using neighborhood streets to turn around. The function of the 
intersections was also reviewed for what was significant in the number of trips. He discussed lane 
configurations on 219 and Wilsonville Road. There was concern about the potential safety and livability 
issues with the mobile home park to the east of the existing Wilsonville Road alignment as there was 
already cut through traffic. Staff also looked at Yamhill County’s Transportation System Plan which 
identified the average daily trips on Wilsonville Road was in a range of 3,000 to 6,000. The peak hour 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 4 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 3 of 13 

volumes would be 100 to 200 trips. The analysis also showed good corridor health. Staff recommended 
approval of the resolutions. The first resolution would reduce the lanes to one on Highway 219 and 
addressed a safety concern and the second was for the Wilsonville Road/Highway 219 to go with a no 
through design.  
 
PC Philip Smith clarified there were 3,500 daily trips on Wilsonville Road. How many additional trips 
would there be for Option 1? 
 
CDD Doug Rux answered another 500 daily trips, which increased the number to 4,000. 
 
PC Philip Smith asked how many additional trips would there be for Option 8. 
 
CE Kaaren Hofmann answered the assumption was the same, 500 daily trips would be added. PC Philip 
Smith clarified getting rid of through traffic would not discourage traffic to go on Wilsonville Road.  
 
Chair Gary Bliss asked about information on current peak hour traffic and future estimates for the 
following segments of roads from 2011 to 2015 and 2016 to 2035. The segments were: Fernwood Road 
from Springbrook to Brutscher, Fernwood Road from Brutscher to Corral Creek, Brutscher Road from 
Fernwood Road to Hayes, and Corral Creek Road from Fernwood to Renne.  
 
CE Hofmann said the numbers they had were for Brutscher Road from Fernwood to Hayes from 2016 to 
2035 under a no build scenario and the difference in the numbers was a 39% increase in traffic. The 
numbers in the traffic studies provided showed how the traffic would move from Springbrook to 
Brutscher or Providence Drive and how the trips shifted over to coming from that direction. The numbers 
for Corral Creek Road from Fernwood to Renne were in the Yamhill County TSP as well as Renne Road to 
Corral Creek. The current numbers showed daily trips on Renne Road and Corral Creek were less than 
1,000 and the future numbers were also less than 1,000. For peak hours it was less than 100 in 2016. She 
did not have any traffic accident reports for these roads. The road extensions for Corral Creek, Renne, and 
Fernwood from the golf course to Corral Creek were not in the Yamhill County TSP and would not be 
constructed in the next 20 years. 
 
PC Allyn Edwards asked if there was information on why there was logging on Wilsonville Road. 
 
CDD Doug Rux answered he did not know why that was occurring. 
 
PC Jason Dale thought a winery would be going in that location. 
 
Public Testimony: 

A. Applicant:  
Tim Potter of ODOT said Phase 1 was determined by the legislature in 2009 and the legislature 
provided $192 million dollars to build the first phase of the Bypass.  
 
William Ciz, ODOT Consultant, gave a PowerPoint presentation regarding the two requests, the 
southbound lane configuration on Highway 219 and the Wilsonville Road intersection. Some 
additional information was submitted that updated the traffic analysis in the application. The 
intersections were evaluated based on the opening year of the Bypass and was consistent with the 
work done on the EIS process. The intersections on 219 and 99W did not meet the plan 
performance standards in 2035 and would be addressed through the TSP process by creating 
alternate mobility standards for those intersections for the Transportation Commission to 
approve. The first request was for changing the lane configuration for Highway 219. They had 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 5 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 4 of 13 

proposed two south bound through lanes on 219 and between Springbrook and the Bypass 
intersection there would be two right turn lanes. During the final design process, a safety concern 
arose and ODOT developed an alternative with a single through lane and dedicated right turn lane 
onto the Bypass. The final design alternative did not meet ODOT’s standard for new intersections, 
however in this case the safety and operational benefits outweighed the standard. It also cut down 
on right-of-way impacts to properties in the industrial park and reduced costs.  
 
Mr. Potter explained the right-of-way constraints on both sides of 219. 
 
PC Philip Smith thought if the second proposal was approved it would improve the volume to 
capacity ratio on the preferred alternative here.  
 
Mr. Ciz continued his presentation on the proposal for the Highway 219/Phase 1 
Bypass/Wilsonville Road intersection. Since the last TSP amendment in 2013, there were 
concerns about the design of Wilsonville Road. ODOT looked at eight options to address the 
concerns. The improvements on Highway 219/99W and Springbrook Road had to be in place 
before the rest of the Bypass could be opened. Any changes to the intersection design had to 
minimize right-of-way purchases and utility relocations. Option 1 was currently in the 
construction plans for the project. All of the intersections except 219 and Wynooski met either 
City or ODOT standards. He explained Option 2, installing a signal at the current intersection of 
Wilsonville and Springbrook, which would not work because of the queuing issue and it would not 
allow for future growth. Option 3, turning the existing intersection of Springbrook and Wilsonville 
into right in, right out, would not work due to the additional traffic it would place on these roads. 
Option 4, taking Wilsonville Road to a signalized intersection south of Wynooski Road, would not 
work because it would include new right-of-way, utility impacts, and impacts to the schedule. 
Option 5, using existing Adolf Road and connecting it with Wynooski at a signalized intersection, 
would operate similar to Option 1. Option 6, a roundabout, did not meet the concerns of the Ladd 
Hill group, Clackamas County, or City of Wilsonville. Option 7 was removing the eastbound 
through movement onto Wilsonville Road from the Bypass which would add traffic and alternate 
routes in the neighborhood would be used. Option 8 was what ODOT was requesting. It was a no 
through option for Wilsonville Road. It not only cut off access from the eastbound Bypass onto 
Wilsonville Road but also access from Wilsonville Road onto the Bypass westbound. He explained 
the alternate routes people would most likely use to go the direction they wanted and how it 
would add 50 trips in the peak hour, 25 going in each direction. 

 
PC Philip Smith asked about the numbers from staff. Currently there were 3,500 trips on 
Wilsonville Road per day and with Option 1 it would increase to 4,000 trips per day and Option 8 
it would also go up to 4,000 trips per day. 
 
Mr. Potter challenged the 3,500 cars per day and thought that number included the 50 that wanted 
to go in either direction. It was people who had a destination beyond Newberg or Dundee that the 
modeling indicated. The 3,500 would not increase, it was there already. 
 
PC Cathy Stuhr asked if they went with Option 8, how many fewer cars were going to go down 
Wilsonville Road than in Option 1. PC Philip Smith said many people wanted to adopt Option 8 
because they thought it would reduce the number of cars on Wilsonville Road and he wanted to 
know how much of a reduction was estimated. 
 
Mr. Ciz answered the modeling showed the traffic on Wilsonville Road would be the same under 
either of these options. Wilsonville Road was not an attractive route to I-5. 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 6 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 5 of 13 

 
PC Philip Smith clarified that between Option 1 and Option 8 the number of cars on Wilsonville 
Road did not change. If so, why propose something that would hurt neighborhoods in Newberg?  
 
Mr. Potter said from ODOT’s standpoint it was an issue of taking the concerns of the Ladd Hill 
Neighborhood Association into account and making sure their issues were addressed as they 
would for any neighborhood association. 
 
PC Matt Fortner thought Option 8 would make people go on neighborhood streets to get onto 
Wilsonville Road and that was a safety concern. People would be doing U-turns where they were 
not supposed to, cutting through private properties, etc. He did not think the option sounded 
viable as a realistic plan. 
 
PC Philip Smith asked what the thinking was behind Option 8. Mr. Potter replied there were many 
people that did not believe the traffic engineer’s numbers and they were in a position where they 
were arguing perceptions. This was a compromise that allowed ODOT to stay within schedule, 
scope, and budget. There was not a significant difference between the two. 
 
PC Allyn Edwards asked how they measured the anticipated increase of flow of people on the 
Bypass. He thought because of the convenience of the Bypass that had never been there before 
more people would be using it. Mr. Potter said part of the reason for the Bypass was to relieve 
traffic on 99W. He discussed the assumptions in the modeling including travel patterns and times. 
The Bypass would relieve traffic on 99W, but would increase what happened on Mckay Road 
through Marion County. There was some potential of increase on Wilsonville Road, but it would be 
based on people’s destinations. If it took people longer to get to the Bypass, they would be much 
more likely to continue on Wilsonville Road to 99W and points west. 
 
PC Cathy Stuhr said if the Commission approved Option 8, and all the traffic was put on Fernwood, 
Corral Creek, and Renne Roads, there was no plan in Yamhill County to improve those roads to 
handle the traffic. 
 
Chair Gary Bliss asked if Fernwood, Corral Creek, and Renne Roads were in the area of influence 
and if so, why weren’t they studied. These streets already had safety issues. Mr. Potter did not 
have an answer to that question.  
 
PC Philip Smith asked what could be done for people who lived in the mobile home court to 
prevent through traffic and prevent U-turns on 219. Mr. Potter said ODOT was committed to 
working with the Traffic Safety Commission to come up with recommendations for the unintended 
consequences. 

 
PC Patrick Johnson asked why ODOT spent the time to come up with a new alternative and the net 
gain was zero. He wondered why other jurisdictions were in favor of Option 8. Did potential 
litigation have an impact on this decision? Mr. Potter said it was negotiation with concerned 
neighbors that led to the design. It was not purely political, but was schedule related as well as 
answering the concerns by other jurisdictions. The other jurisdictions were aware of the traffic 
modeling and how ODOT came up with the option. 

 
B. Proponents: 

Brent Ahrend, Traffic Engineer with McKenzie Engineering, had been working with the Ladd Hill 
Neighborhood Association to help them understand this issue. Contrary to what was said by ODOT 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 7 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 6 of 13 

and City staff, there was no transportation model that could predict the volume of traffic that 
would use Wilsonville Road with the proposed connection directly opposite the Phase 1 Bypass. A 
transportation model was prepared for the full Bypass project and assumed no change on the 
roads in and out of the Newberg/Dundee area. These were fixed numbers reflecting travel 
demand outside the model’s sphere of influence. When funding was provided for Phase 1, ODOT 
reran that same model for the full Bypass with just the Phase 1 section of the Bypass. Because the 
volumes on Wilsonville Road outside the boundary of the existing model were fixed there was no 
way the volumes could change no matter how many times the numbers were run using various 
road configurations inside Newberg. The neighborhood learned of this in May of 2014. Even 
though the model was incapable of showing any impact on Wilsonville Road, ODOT and their 
consultants continued a misleading narrative of the model showing no impact on Wilsonville 
Road. ODOT, City staff, and consultants had confused the issue by talking about travel patterns and 
origin destinations for current Wilsonville Road users. This still did not address the concern that 
drivers on the Bypass would find Wilsonville Road a convenient route to and from Wilsonville, I-5, 
and points north and east. During negotiations with ODOT, City staff, and the Ladd Hill 
Neighborhood Association there was dispute over the potential traffic volume that would be 
added to Wilsonville Road with the Phase 1 alignment, but they worked together to find options 
that would likely reduce the number of trips. The outcome was a no-through option or Option 8. 
The analysis assumed 50 trips traveling on Wilsonville Road and the Bypass in the peak hour, 25 
in each direction. He believed people would continue to use 99W through Newberg and Dundee as 
they currently did. The prediction was the Bypass would reduce 865 vehicles during the pm peak 
hour on Highway 99W and downtown Newberg. Adding those 50 trips back still resulted in a large 
reduction through downtown Newberg. The 50 trips represented 12% of those already on 
Wilsonville Road that were assumed to be traveling to and from locations beyond Dundee and 
would choose to use the Bypass under the Option 1 configuration. The model showed no change to 
the south on 219 towards Mckay. The Bypass would not change the traffic volumes on Wilsonville 
Road. The Ladd Hill Neighborhood Association, ODOT, and the City did not know how many 
vehicles would be added to Wilsonville Road with the Phase 1 project with Option 1 as currently 
proposed. There was potential for an increase on Wilsonville Road when the connection was 
made. That was why ODOT and the neighborhood worked together to find a solution to discourage 
that through traffic. Given the small percentage of current Wilsonville Road travelers going 
beyond Dundee there would be a small impact on local streets as most would continue to use 219 
and 99W. Safety concerns along Wilsonville Road would be addressed with the no-through 
configuration. 
 
PC Philip Smith clarified there was no scientific prediction for how much traffic would change on 
Wilsonville Road. Mr. Ahrend thought the modeling was not done because of the large scope of 
such a study. PC Philip Smith said this request was asking the City to do something based on other 
people’s fears. 
 
PC Cathy Stuhr asked how the modeling was done. Mr. Ahrend said when the legislature gave 
ODOT the money to build Phase 1of the Bypass, they should have known the model couldn’t 
accurately predict the Phase 1 project. It did not include the smaller roads in this area and the 
model should be expanded to look at it.  
 
PC Allyn Edwards asked about the advantages of Option 1 over Option 8. Mr. Ahrend said there 
were safety concerns and hazards with Option 1 such as sharp curves and narrow streets and 
truck traffic and cut through traffic. 
PC Matt Fortner discussed the need for expanding the model to I-5 and if it was more than what 
should be expected of ODOT to do. 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 8 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 7 of 13 

 
Chair Gary Bliss discussed the possible re-routes of traffic and how it did not make sense to add 
trips to streets such as Renne Road as it was a safety issue for the Newberg community. He did not 
see the same reasoning on Wilsonville Road. Mr. Ahrend stated not all 50 trips would choose 
Renne Road. The most likely scenario for someone traveling west of Dundee back to Wilsonville 
Road was to use 99W through town. If they got on the Bypass, they could come back on 
Springbrook. Even though a route might be quicker, he thought people would rather go the route 
where they were not impeded by traffic lights. 

 
PC Matt Fortner thought Wilsonville Road had a perception too and not many would want to drive 
on it. Mr. Ahrend said Mckay was quicker, but for people less familiar with the area Wilsonville 
Road would be an attractive option. PC Fortner said this was traffic that daily went in and out and 
people did not take Wilsonville Road unless they had to. Mr. Ahrend said most of the Wilsonville 
Road traffic stayed in the Newberg/Dundee area. 
 
Mike Bezner, Assistant Director of Transportation for Clackamas County, agreed Wilsonville Road 
was not a good road and said that the County cared about safety everywhere. Clackamas County 
had a Transportation Safety Action Plan, which was the only county in Oregon that had one. They 
had a goal to reduce fatal and serious injury crashes by 50% between 2012 and 2022. Wilsonville 
Road in 2013 had reported 22 crashes. There were safety projects for the road, but only one was 
funded. He did not feel comfortable with adding trips to Wilsonville Road.  

 
PC Matt Fortner said ODOT stated no extra traffic would be going on Wilsonville Road except what 
was already existing. What data was being used to show the trips would be increased? Mr. Bezner 
did not have the data, but believed it to be true. 
 
Linda Edwards, resident on Wilsonville Road, opposed the traffic from the Bypass being directed 
to and from Wilsonville Road and supported the no-through traffic plan. There would be an 
increase in traffic as it would be the quickest route. Wilsonville Road was not designed or 
maintained to support through traffic as there were curves and hazards. It was a two lane country 
road that Clackamas County designated as part of their scenic road program. Farmers worked the 
land in this area as well as equestrian facilities that drove tractors, trailers, and equipment on the 
road. Many people speed on the road resulting in accidents. There were no turn lanes, signal lanes, 
lights, stop signs, or roundabouts and no shoulders only deep ditches, drop offs, trees, and fences 
on each side. The road was not engineered for large vehicles. There was no room to pass or back 
up or maneuver. Some schools were located on Wilsonville Road and the traffic that collected 
there at certain times of the day increased safety concerns. The surrounding neighbors around the 
schools could only be accessed by Wilsonville Road. Wilsonville Road could not handle additional 
traffic from a Bypass without causing major safety issues and delays. It needed to be obvious to 
drivers taking the Bypass that Wilsonville Road was not the direct access to I-5 and was not an 
extension of the Bypass. The most important issue was safety for the people in this community 
and she thought that would be done by the no-through choice for Wilsonville Road. 
 
PC Cathy Stuhr said the same comments could be made for Fernwood, Corral Creek, and Renne 
Roads. They did not have the data to create the best flow of traffic and do the best thing.  
 
PC Allyn Edwards asked if it was larger vehicles that were mostly creating the traffic safety issues. 
Ms. Edwards said larger vehicles were an issue when it came to tight corners. It was also the 
amount of traffic currently on Wilsonville Road which was getting worse. She did not think putting 
in a lot of stop signs would solve the problem. 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 9 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 8 of 13 

 
PC Philip Smith said when the whole Bypass was completed, some traffic would be coming down 
Wilsonville Road. The Bypass might never be completed and it looked like those on Wilsonville 
Road got an ideal situation with Option 8.  
 
John Freeman was a resident on Heater Road which was on the east shoulder of Parrot Mountain. 
While he did not live in the city limits of Newberg, he was a part of the Newberg community as he 
shopped in Newberg, dined in Newberg, his property taxes supported the School District, and he 
hired employees that were Newberg residents. He was an active member of the Yamhill County 
CERT. There were no traffic studies that would show how much traffic would increase on 
Wilsonville Road if Option 1 was put in. He thought the State was wrong in saying there would not 
be a change, but he did not know how much of a change it would be. Common sense told him it 
would be a significant increase if Option 1 was built. The reason Option 8 was attractive was 
because the additional traffic would not come down Wilsonville Road and the State would not 
have to do a study and the Bypass would be finished on time and on budget. 
 
Chair Gary Bliss said if Option 8 was built it might diminish traffic in that area, but other 
neighborhoods would be impacted. He thought Option 1 could be built within the scheduled time. 
Mr. Freeman said about two thirds of Wilsonville Road in Yamhill County was marked in yellow 
indicating 100 to 200% more than the State average for accidents.  
 
Chair Gary Bliss recessed the meeting for a five minute break and then reconvened the meeting. 
 
Berniece Godfrehy, Yamhill County resident who lived on Wilsonville Road, said it came down to 
safety. She traveled the road every day and discussed accidents she had witnessed on Wilsonville 
Road. Given the speeding and passing even though there were double lines on the road, it was a 
safety issue and she was concerned about adding more traffic to the road. She hoped that the 
Commission would prioritize safety. 
 
PC Allyn Edwards thought everyone was concerned about safety. Traffic would be increased on 
Wilsonville Road and he asked if she had suggestions to alleviate the issues. Ms. Godfrehy was in 
favor of Option 8 as it would give the City time to address the safety issues before the final 
construction of the Bypass was completed. 
 
Nancy Kraushaar, CCD for the City of Wilsonville, was in attendance on behalf of Mayor Knapp and 
the Wilsonville City Council. Since June of 2013 the City of Wilsonville had been engaged in 
working with ODOT on a design for the 219/Wilsonville Road intersection associated with Phase 1 
of the Bypass. The original traffic modeling for the complete Bypass did not assume it would 
terminate at Wilsonville Road and with this new connection they were gravely concerned about 
additional traffic on Wilsonville Road. This was a highly constrained rural road with tight curves, 
limited site distance, and existing safety issues. There were frequent crashes and problematic 
truck movements. They were concerned about safety impacts around the schools and adding new 
trips and congestion to Wilsonville Road. The City of Wilsonville was under the obligations of an 
adopted Interchange Access Management Plan with ODOT. The City of Wilsonville was in favor of 
Option 8, however they also understood that it was not a desirable modification for Newberg 
because of the impacts to local streets. It would be best to build the east end of the Bypass now to 
its ultimate configuration where Wilsonville Road was separated from the Bypass. This was 
Option 4. The City of Wilsonville would partner with Newberg to convince ODOT that it made the 
most sense to build this end of the project with the best engineering solution and not increase 
traffic on Wilsonville Road. In the meantime they requested approval of the no-through option. 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 10 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 9 of 13 

 
PC Patrick Johnson asked if there was a possibility for an MOU between the two cities. Ms. 
Kraushaar would bring that message back to the Wilsonville Council. 
 
PC Philip Smith said Option 4 did not stay within ODOT’s budget and timeline. Ms. Kraushaar 
thought it was conceivable that the projects could be run concurrently by proceeding with the 
current bid documents and working on the funding, design, and right-of-way acquisition for 
Option 4.  
 
PC Allyn Edwards asked about posting signs and other extreme measures to discourage through 
traffic for trucks and to discourage speeding. Ms. Kraushaar said the City’s Police Department only 
had jurisdiction in the City limits and the County had jurisdiction of the rural roads. They were 
most concerned about the potential for increased traffic. 
 
Stan Halle, Yamhill County resident who lived on Wilsonville Road, said he paid Newberg taxes 
and spent a great deal of time in Newberg. He did extensive volunteer work at the Chehalem 
Cultural Center and was a Yamhill County CERT member. He had 45 years of experience as public 
policy advisor, an engineer, and management consultant. He was a proponent of the resolutions. 
He was also the Chair of the Bypass Impact Committee. ODOT and the consultants continued to say 
there was no impact on Wilsonville Road and that had been debunked several times in writing by 
their own people. To keep saying there was no impact was misleading and unprofessional and 
created a false basis which the City staff used to conclude that the Planning Commission should 
recommend Option 1. On September 30, he met Paul Mather of ODOT who said ODOT never 
intended Wilsonville Road to become an outlet for the Bypass. Clackamas County Sheriff data 
showed speeds on Wilsonville Road in excess of 85 mph five days in a row. The School District 
stated the through-through intersection was in direct conflict with the Safe Routes to School 
program. The 99W/Springbrook intersection would fail once Phase 1 of the Bypass was 
constructed and there was no mitigation. Traffic and trucks had increased on Wilsonville Road. 
They wanted the Bypass to be completed as soon as possible and wanted to work with the City to 
help get it accomplished. The Bypass was a high priority project federally and if the Bypass was 
completed these issues on Wilsonville Road and other side streets would disappear. The bad news 
was if there was a dispute over the Phase 1 Bypass including appeals and possible litigation which 
could put federal funding for the Bypass at risk. It was his opinion that if the Commission denied 
Option 8, it put those funds at risk.  
 
PC Philip Smith thought completion of the Bypass would still bring traffic to Wilsonville Road 
because an exit would be created on Wynooski to go onto Wilsonville Road and the freeway. Mr. 
Halle said it would not be commuter traffic. 
 
Chair Gary Bliss said the traffic was not only local, but transient from Portland, Gresham, or the 
coast. Mr. Halle said when ODOT made the decision to limit the spheres of influence to the 
boundaries of the City of Newberg that was what led to dumping of traffic onto Springbrook and 
Wilsonville. He suggested an answer to the problem was a couplet design where Springbrook 
became two lanes going northbound only, and Elliot became two lanes going southbound only. 
That would ease the traffic on Springbrook and increase the capacity for the 99W and Springbrook 
intersection and with the no-through it would reduce the Wilsonville Road issues. ODOT said they 
would be looking at mitigation and any savings they had in the construction of Phase 1 would be 
applied to this idea and they were hoping that it would be done in the short term. 
Debi Lowe was a Clackamas County resident living on Wilsonville Road. She was there on behalf of 
Representative John Davis who stated he was committed to funding and completing the Bypass in 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 11 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 10 of 13 

a manner that helped rather than harmed mobility and traffic in Newberg and the surrounding 
region. Any increase in traffic on Wilsonville Road would have a negative impact on the health, 
safety, and welfare of thousands of Yamhill and Clackamas County residents who lived on or near 
the road. Such an increase was also in direct contrast to the legislative intent of passing the Jobs 
and Transportation Act of 2009 which funded the majority of the Bypass. He was committed to 
providing Newberg and the surrounding region with the resources from the State level to help. 
The Bypass needed to be fully completed in a way that improved rather than increased traffic 
mobility and mobility through Newberg. Ms. Lowe had lived on Wilsonville Road for 25 years and 
she echoed the safety issues and a solution would be changing the speed limit on Wilsonville Road 
to 35 mph.  
 
David Leckey said Wilsonville Road was 13.5 miles long and 250 yards of it was in the City of 
Newberg. The other 99% was in other people’s jurisdictions. Yet the Commission would be voting 
on something that the residents had no power to vote on. They would have to live with the 
Commission’s decision and it affected a lot of people. 
 
Cheryl McCaffrey said in the interest of time, she had no comment. 
 
John Phelan, Yamhill County Public Works Director, had been in his position for seven years and 
noticed the first year he was on the job that this design was flawed. He answered some previous 
Commission questions. The forested area that was being removed was going to be a vineyard. 
There was no long term plan for Wilsonville Road to accommodate increased traffic. Chair Bliss 
had been right on his measurements. The best long term solution was to put shoulder gravel on 
the road as there was no funding to straighten the curves. The County’s figures showed there were 
2,500 cars per day on Wilsonville Road and the County’s TSP recognized 3,000 to 6,000 in the 
future which was in anticipation of the Bypass. At the very least traffic would be increased by 500 
vehicles per day. The speed control was set by a State agency, not the County, and he thought it 
would be difficult to get the speed limit reduced. There was no long term plan for Renne Road, and 
at best it would be paved in the next three to five years. He thought Wilsonville Road was 
currently at capacity and disagreed with the modeling saying it would not be an attractive road as 
it was aesthetically pleasing and people driving from the coast and casino would elect to go down 
Wilsonville rather than 99W.  

 
PC Cathy Stuhr thought it was likely people would also choose to use the side streets to turn 
around and get onto Wilsonville Road. Mr. Phelan agreed and thought the two options before the 
Commission left a lot to be desired. 
 
Henry Richmond lived and operated a farm on Wilsonville Road. He said Clackamas County had 
reduced the speed to 45 mph and put up a sign and might put a stop light on Wilsonville Road. The 
City of Wilsonville had 25 mph near the school as well as flashing lights and people did slow down 
during school hours. The farm worked both sides of Wilsonville Road and they crossed the road 
every day several times. He was in favor of the no-through proposal. The peak hour traffic on 
Wilsonville Road according to ODOT was 170 vehicles and the traffic on 99W west of Dundee was 
1,270 and the State anticipated 49% of that traffic would go on the Bypass. The modeling was not 
done for Wilsonville Road and they did not know how many of those cars would end up on Mckay 
or Springbrook, but if a third or half of them went down Wilsonville Road, that was two to three 
times more than it was today. That was not acceptable and he was not happy with how ODOT had 
acted throughout this process. The people who lived on Wilsonville Road had a solid basis for 
concern. They did not see Wilsonville Road as an extension of the Bypass. 
 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 12 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 11 of 13 

Merle Smith was a Clackamas County resident who lived on S Ranch Road. He got his mail from the 
Newberg post office and paid taxes to the Newberg school system. He went to Newberg frequently 
and it was his community. He wanted the Bypass and the better access it would bring. This was 
not a battle between neighborhoods. They wanted to solve a local problem, but it had a regional 
impact. They were the victims of under-funding and a partial solution. The congestion was not 
being relieved, but was being removed from 99W to surface streets that everyone used and was 
being done without sufficient study or notification to the people who would be impacted. The 99W 
traffic was never intended to go down Wilsonville Road. Option 1 would be an invitation for that to 
happen. Option 8 went back to what was intended for the partial completed Bypass, to encourage 
the traffic to go back up to 99W. He explained how the no-through option would work and that it 
would allow left and right hand turns, just not straight through traffic. 
 
PC Allyn Edwards asked what would happen to the residents if Wilsonville Road was shut down. 
Mr. Smith thought it would create chaos and he discussed how other alternatives would be worse 
if Wilsonville Road was shut down. 
 
Lindsey Berschauer lived on Wilsonville Road. She supported the no-through option. No project 
was too far along to pull it back and make it right. The kids living on Wilsonville Road attended 
Newberg schools and their parents were shopping and working in Newberg. She explained the 
traffic problems she had taking her son to school on Wilsonville Road and the gridlock she 
encountered. She thought the cities of Newberg and Wilsonville should collaborate to find a better 
solution. There was a lot of truck traffic in the neighborhoods and there were fatal flaws in most of 
the intersections on Wilsonville Road. On top of the speeding issues, people were passing around 
some of the turns where there was almost zero visibility. She wanted to make sure it was done 
right the first time. 
 
Steven Schuback lived on Wilsonville Road. There was mutual interest in safety and solving the 
traffic problems. He thought Option 8 met the interests for the majority of the people in 
attendance. Option 1 did not solve the problems for those living on Wilsonville Road.  
Regardless of the options, the whole area between the Bypass, Fred Meyer, the hospital, and 
Renne Road would be saturated with traffic. Inside the City limits they could change speed limits 
and traffic patterns, but on Wilsonville Road they had no control over the street and did not have 
the tools or alternatives the City had. He strongly recommended going with Option 8. 
 

C. Opponents and Undecided 
 
Hillary Crew, Newberg resident, said her neighborhood bordered Springbrook and Brutscher. 
There were 288 homes in her neighborhood and most of them were homes with children. There 
were no crosswalks or lights, nothing in place that would protect the safety of the children and the 
ability to get in and out of the neighborhood. Anticipating 800 cars on Springbrook was a 
significant impact on the area.  
 
Mike Hallock had no additional comments to make. 
 
Terry Palmer, Newberg resident, lived near Fernwood. He thought cars would find a way around 
to Wilsonville Road, especially City of Wilsonville residents who were going home. The majority of 
traffic increase on Wilsonville Road would be Wilsonville residents, not people from out of town. 
Corral Creek and Renne were not designed for the increased traffic. Response time for emergency 
vehicles would be affected. Fernwood and Brutscher were homes to elderly residents who used 
mobility scooters to travel back and forth on the road. The roads were also zoned for golf carts. 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 13 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 12 of 13 

There was no data to support the traffic flows. Everyone assumed it would be worse, but no one 
has the numbers. If Option 8 was passed, he would like to see no-through traffic allowed on 
Fernwood, Renne, and Corral Creek except for residents of those roads and that it would be 
enforced by the Police Department. He thought the primary responsibility was to Newberg 
residents and their safety. 
 
Jack Reardon had no comments. 
 
Sally Rice had left the meeting. 
 
Bill Rourke, Newberg resident, did not think the east end of the Bypass would be done in the near 
future. Traffic would increase as a result of the Bypass and there were safety concerns. The safety 
concerns people had about Wilsonville Road were the same for the Newberg neighborhoods if the 
traffic was re-routed. The choice was where the safety issue needed to be addressed most. He 
suggested three options for people to take in order to more evenly distribute the traffic and using 
signage to direct the traffic better. The threat of a lawsuit should not be the deciding factor. 
 
Gerald Towers lived on Wilsonville Road. He asked how many lanes would be on the Bypass. Chair 
Gary Bliss answered two, one lane going each way. Mr. Towers thought there should be two lanes 
going each way. Chair Gary Bliss said eventually there would be two lanes, but he did not think it 
would happen in his lifetime 
 
Jack Reardon, Newberg resident, spoke in favor of Options 2, 4, and 5, particularly Option 5. He 
heard nothing from ODOT explaining how it made sense to connect Wilsonville Road to a Bypass 
facility when there were no plans to improve the rural road.  
 

D. Written Correspondence 
CDD Doug Rux handed out additional correspondence that came in, an email from Representative 
Davis and material received from ODOT. The Planning Commission took five minutes to read the 
information. 

 
E. Applicant rebuttal 

Mr. Potter answered questions that had been directed at ODOT. There were no schedule or cost 
impacts by going with Option 8. He discussed the other two traffic models that could be used, the 
Metro model and statewide model. The Metro model treated 99W as an external station. The cost 
of Option 4 would be seven million dollars and would take three years to acquire right-of-way, 
design and construct. ODOT was willing to help mitigate any marginal impacts that the no-through 
design would have on the Newberg community. These impacts would be identified after 
construction because they did not know what those impacts would be yet.  

 
PC Philip Smith thought they were already anticipating where those impacts would occur. The 
judgments needed to be made together with the County, ODOT, and the City of Newberg. He 
wanted the assurance that ODOT would help with planning and mitigation for Newberg streets. 
Included on the list was dealing with cut through traffic in the mobile home park, the problem of 
County roads that could not take more traffic, specifically Fernwood, Renne, Corral Creek, and 
Wilsonville Road, lights and crosswalks in the Brutscher/Springbrook area, and signage to Mckay. 
Chair Gary Bliss asked if there was money for the mitigation issues. Mr. Potter said ODOT would 
find the money to meet the commitment. 
 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 14 of 59 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (December 10, 2015)  Page 13 of 13 

Chair Gary Bliss asked about the travel times at the Springbrook and Fernwood and 99W 
intersection during peak times. 
 
Wade Scarbrough, Kittelson and Associates, said Kittelson did the traffic analysis for the modeling. 
The Springbrook and Fernwood intersections with the Phase 1 of the Bypass was projected to be 
at 81% capacity. People should be able to get through at the first cycle. 
 

Final Comments from staff and recommendation:  
PC Johnson asked what it would mean to the timeline of the Bypass if the hearing was continued. 
 
CDD Doug Rux said ODOT had been made aware that the hearing might be continued until January. 
 

MOTION:  Commissioner Philip Smith moved to close the public testimony portion of the hearing and 
continue Commission deliberations at the next meeting on January 14, 2016. Seconded by Commissioner 
Cathy Stuhr and passed 7-0. 

 
Close of Public Testimony:  Chair Gary Bliss closed the public testimony portion of the hearing at 11:23 
pm. 
 
ITEMS FROM STAFF:   
CDD Doug Rux reported on recent City Council actions and upcoming items that would be brought to the 
Planning Commission in January and February. The Planning Commission would be getting City email 
addresses to be used for City communications and he explained how to set them up. He gave an update on 
the Urban Growth Boundary process. 
 
ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS:   
PC Allyn Edwards thought there should be discussion regarding extending Gary Bliss as Chair in January 
as they were in the middle of some issues. Chair Gary Bliss said the Chair typically changed after the 
January meeting.  
 
CDD Doug Rux said election of the Chair and Vice Chair would be on the January meeting agenda. The 
new Chair could pass the gavel back to Mr. Bliss to complete the hearing in January and when the hearing 
was done the new Chair could take over. 
 
PC Cathy Stuhr commented about the seniority based process the Commission used for electing Chair and 
Vice Chair and changing it to make sure if one was a newer member that the other was an older member 
who had more experience.  
 
PC Patrick Johnson said the reason he left the Budget Committee was because they wanted to make him 
Chair. He had no interest in a leadership position until he understood the processes better. 
 
Chair Gary Bliss adjourned the meeting at 11:35 p.m.  
 
Approved by the Newberg Planning Commission this 14 day of January, 2016. 
 
 
________________________________________                            ____________________________________________ 
Bobbie Morgan, Planning Secretary              Gary Bliss, Planning Commission Chair 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 15 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 16 of 59 



Exhibit “1” 
To Planning Commission Rules 

 

 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Rules & Guidelines                                   Page 17 

OUTLINE FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING 
Newberg Planning Commission 

  
1. CALL TO ORDER 

OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS TESTIMONY 
PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 

 
2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS AND OBJECTIONS TO JURISDICTION  
 
3. STAFF REPORT 
 COMMISSION MAY ASK BRIEF QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION 

   
4. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT PER SPEAKER (15 MINUTE LIMIT FOR APPLICANT AND 
PRINCIPAL OPPONENT).  SPEAKER GOES TO WITNESS TABLE, STATES NAME & 
PRESENTS TESTIMONY.  COMMISSION MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF SPEAKERS. 
 A. APPLICANT(S) (IF ANY) 
 B. OTHER PROPONENTS                 
 C. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 
 D. STAFF READS WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE (TIME LIMIT APPLIES)  
 E. APPLICANT (IF ANY) REBUTTAL 
 
5. CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 
6.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  

 
7. PLANNING COMMISSION DELIBERATION 

 
8. ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMMISSION 
 A. RESOLUTION – Usually requires passage of resolution. 
 B. VOTE – Vote is done by roll call. 

C. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other commission action; separate vote 
on each action is required. 

 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 17 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 18 of 59 



   Community Development Department 
      P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132  

      503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Newberg Planning Commission 

FROM: Jessica Pelz, Associate Planner 

SUBJECT: Continued hearing from the December 10, 2015 meeting – File No. CPTA-15-002 

DATE:  January 14, 2016 

 

At the December 10, 2015 Planning Commission hearing, the Planning Commission voted to continue 

the hearing on Resolution No. 2015-310 and Resolution No. 2015-311 until the January 14, 2016 

meeting.  The Planning Commission closed public testimony on these items; therefore, no new public 

testimony (either orally or in writing) will be accepted on the item at the January 14, 2016 meeting, 

unless the Planning Commission votes to reopen testimony.   

 

Note: If Planning Commission votes to reopen the public testimony to receive new items, they will not be 

able to begin deliberation on this item.  The written record must remain open for an additional seven 

days to allow anyone the opportunity to respond to the new information.  The applicant would then 

either request an additional seven days for themselves to respond, or they may waive this right.  

Deliberation on this item would then be continued to either a special meeting in January (potentially 

January 28) or to the next regular Planning Commission hearing date on February 11, 2016. If 

Planning Commission chooses to not vote to reopen public testimony, the hearing on this item will begin 

at the point of Planning Commission deliberation on January 14, 2016. 

 

Below is a brief summary of the proposals.  Please refer to your December 10, 2015 meeting packet 

for the full staff report for these items, and please remember to bring the complete packet to the 

January 14, 2016 meeting.   
 

Summary of Proposals: 

The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) submitted an application to the City of Newberg for 

two proposed Transportation System Plan (TSP) amendments:  

1. Changes to the road and lane configuration of southbound Oregon 219 from north of the 

Springbrook Road/Industrial Parkway intersection through the Phase 1 Bypass/Wilsonville Road 

intersection.  This change is necessary due to further refinement of the construction plans for the 

Phase 1 Bypass and to address traffic safety concerns.  The changes include removing one of the 

proposed southbound through lanes on Oregon 219 and one of the proposed southbound right 

turn lanes onto the Phase 1 Bypass. (Resolution No. 2015-310) 

 

2. Changing the Oregon 219/Phase 1 Bypass/Wilsonville Road intersection to a “No Thru Traffic” 

design.  This change is proposed to address traffic safety concerns expressed by the Ladd Hill 

Neighborhood Association and their coalition. The “No Thru Traffic” design would remove 

traffic movements from Wilsonville Road onto the Phase 1 Bypass and from the Phase 1 Bypass 

onto Wilsonville Road. Westbound traffic on Wilsonville Road could only turn right or left onto 

Oregon 219, and eastbound traffic on the Phase 1 Bypass could only turn right or left onto 

Oregon 219. (Resolution No. 2015-311)  

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 19 of 59 



 

Staff Recommendation (from the 12/10/15 staff report): 

Staff recommends that Planning Commission does the following: 

1. Consider the staff report, public testimony, and the findings. 

2. Deliberate. 

3. Make a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-310, which recommends that City Council adopt 

proposed Amendment 1 to make changes to the road and lane configuration of southbound 

Oregon 219 from north of the Springbrook Road/Industrial Parkway intersection through the 

Phase 1 Bypass/Wilsonville Road intersection. 

4. Make a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-311, which recommends that City Council deny 

proposed Amendment 2 to change the Oregon 219/Phase 1 Bypass/Wilsonville Road intersection 

to a “No Thru Traffic” design. 

 

Attachments: 

1. Written testimony submitted at the 12/10/15 Planning Commission hearing 

 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 20 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 21 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 22 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 23 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 24 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 25 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 26 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 27 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 28 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 29 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 30 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 31 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 32 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 33 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 34 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 35 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 36 of 59 



Planning Commission Meeting
Page 37 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

  Community Development Department 
    P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

        503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

  - DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT  
  

HEARING DATE: January 14, 2016 

FILE NO:  DCA-15-002 

APPLICANT: Initiated by Newberg City Council on December 7, 2015 

REQUEST:  Amend the Newberg Development Code for medical marijuana grow sites in 

residential zones (R-1, R-2, R-3) as permitted uses and as conditional uses in 

all other zones; add definitions for medical marijuana grow sites, medical 

marijuana processors and modify a footnote description for medical marijuana 

dispensaries; allow medical marijuana processers as a permitted use in all 

industrial zones (M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4, AI, SD/E).  

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution 2016-312 with 

 Exhibit “A”:  Proposed Development Code Text Amendment 

 Exhibit “B”:  Findings 

1. City Council Resolution 2015-3244 

 

A. SUMMARY:  The proposed Development Code amendments do the following: 

 Add Medical Marijuana Grow Sites allowing up to twelve mature plants or two patients as a 

permitted use in the R-1, R-2 and R-3 zones as indoor operations. Medical Marijuana Grow 

Sites would be allowed as a conditional use in all other zones. 

 Add Medical Marijuana Processors as an industrial use in all industrial zones (M-1, M-2, M-

3, M-4, AI, SD/E). 

 Medical Marijuana Processors would not be allowed in residential or commercial zones. 

 Modifies a footnote for Medical Marijuana Dispensaries deleting the reference to “Career 

School” and modifying reference to public or private primary, elementary, secondary schools 

to align with definitions in HB 3400. 

 

B. BACKGROUND:  

On March 19, 2014, Senate Bill (SB) 1531 was signed into law. SB 1531 gives local governments 

the ability to impose certain regulations and restrictions on the operation of medical marijuana 

dispensaries, including the ability to impose a moratorium for a period of time up until May 1, 

2015. The city adopted a moratorium on April 7, 2014 by passage of Ordinance No. 2014-2772. 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 38 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

On February 2, 2015, the Newberg City Council initiated a potential amendment to Newberg's 

Development Code regarding medical marijuana dispensaries. 

 

The Oregon Legislature enacted four bills during the 2015 legislative session related to the 

Oregon Medical Marijuana Act and Measure 91. House Bill (HB) 3400 was the omnibus bill 

covering recreational marijuana and modifications to the medical marijuana program. HB 2014 

was enacted addressing taxes on the sale of recreational marijuana, SB 460 related to limited retail 

sales of marijuana from medical marijuana dispensaries and SB 844 enacted a task force on 

researching the medical and public health properties of cannabis. In addition to the enacting of the 

four bills the Oregon Liquor Control Commission adopted temporary Oregon Administrative 

Rules (OAR’s) on October 22, 2015 that were subsequently modified on November 20, 2015 for 

recreational marijuana under Chapter 845, Division 25 and the Oregon Health Authority adopted 

temporary OAR’s on September 22, 2015 for revisions to the medical marijuana program under 

Chapter 333, Division 8.  

 

On April 6, 2015 the Newberg City Council passed Ordinance No. 2015-2780 regulating the time, 

place and manner for medical marijuana dispensaries within the city. 

 

On September 8, 2015 the Newberg City Council was provided background information on 

medical and recreational marijuana at its Work Session. At the City Council Business Session on 

September 8th they established the Marijuana Subcommittee (Subcommittee) comprised of 

Councilors Rourke, Bacon and McKinney along with non-voting member Mayor Andrews. The 

City Council also directed staff to bring back an ordinance with a ban of the sale of recreational 

marijuana from Medical Marijuana Dispensaries. 

 

On September 21, 2015 the Newberg City Council passed ordinance 2015-2787 declaring a ban 

on the early sale of recreational marijuana by marijuana dispensaries and declaring an emergency. 

 

The Subcommittee met on November 19, 2015 to review the similarities and differences between 

the medical marijuana and recreational marijuana programs. The Subcommittee was briefed that 

the operational date for the medical marijuana modifications in HB 3400 was March 1, 2016. The 

Subcommittee was also provided a timeline of dates and activities that would need to occur to 

prepare place, time and manner land use regulations for medical marijuana grow sites and 

processors. The Subcommittee subsequently passed a motion 3-0 directing staff to create a 

Request for Council Action (RCA) to initiate the Development Code Amendment for medical 

marijuana grow site and processor regulations to bring forward for Council consideration on 

December 7. 

 

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 2015-3244 on December 7, 2015 initiating the 

Development Code amendment process (Attachment 1). 

 

The Subcommittee met again on December 9, 2015 and developed recommendations on Medical 

marijuana Grow Sites, Processors and modifications to text in footnote (35) related to Medical 

Marijuana Dispensaries in the Zoning Use Table. 

 

C. PROCESS:  A development code amendment is a Type IV application and follows the 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 39 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

procedures in Newberg Development Code 15.100.060.  The Planning Commission will hold 

a legislative hearing on the application.  The Commission will make a recommendation to the 

Newberg City Council.  Following the Planning Commission’s recommendation, the Newberg 

City Council will hold a legislative hearing to consider the matter.   Important dates related to 

this application are as follows: 

1. 12/7/15: The Newberg City Council initiated the Development Code 

amendment. 

2. 12/30/15: Planning staff placed notice on Newberg’s website, and posted 

notice in four public buildings. The Newberg Graphic published 

notice of the Planning Commission hearing. 

3. 1/14/16: The Planning Commission will hold a legislative hearing to 

consider the application. 

D. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  As of the writing of this report, the city has received no comments 

on the application.  If the city receives additional written comments by the comment deadline, 

Planning staff will forward them to the Commissioners. 

E. ANALYSIS:   

 

Place, Time and Manner: Medical Marijuana Grow Sites and Processors have certain 

limitations per ORS 475.300 – 342, OAR 333-008 and HB 3400. HB 3400 states 

(bracketed and italicized test is deleted and bold text is new). 

 
SECTION 89. Section 2, chapter 79, Oregon Laws 2014, is amended to read: 

Sec. 2. [Notwithstanding ORS 633.738, the governing body of a city or county may adopt 

ordinances that impose reasonable regulations on the operation of medical marijuana facilities 

registered, or applying for registration, under ORS 475.314 that are located in the area subject 

to the jurisdiction of the city or county. For purposes of this section, “reasonable regulations” 

includes reasonable limitations on the hours during which a medical marijuana facility may be 

operated, reasonable limitations on where a medical marijuana facility may be located within 

a zone described in ORS 475.314 (3)(a) and reasonable conditions on the manner in which a 

medical marijuana facility may dispense medical marijuana.] 

(1) For purposes of this section, “reasonable regulations” includes: 

 

(a) Reasonable limitations on the hours during which the marijuana grow 

site of a person designated to produce marijuana by a registry identification 

cardholder, a marijuana processing site or a medical marijuana dispensary may 

operate;  

(b) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana processing 

site or medical marijuana dispensary may transfer usable marijuana, medical 

cannabinoid products, cannabinoid concentrates, cannabinoid extracts, immature 

marijuana plants and seeds; 

(c) Reasonable requirements related to the public’s access to the marijuana 

grow site of a person designated to produce marijuana by a registry identification 

cardholder, a marijuana processing site or a medical marijuana dispensary; 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 40 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

(d)  Reasonable limitations on where the marijuana grow site of a person 

designated to produce marijuana by a registry identification cardholder, a 

marijuana processing site or a medical marijuana dispensary may be located. 

 
(2)  Notwithstanding ORS 633.738, the governing body of a city or county may adopt 

ordinances that impose reasonable regulations on the operation of marijuana grow sites 

of persons designated to produce marijuana by registry identification cardholders, 

marijuana processing sites and medical marijuana dispensaries that are located in the 

area subject to the jurisdiction of the city or county. 

 

PLACE 

 

HB 3400 establishes limits on the number of mature plants that may be grown. The 

law reads as follows (bracketed and italicized text is deleted and bold text is new). 

 

(Grow Site Possession Limits) 

 

SECTION 82. ORS 475.320 is amended to read: 
475.320. [(1)(a) A registry identification cardholder or the designated primary caregiver of the 

cardholder may possess up to six mature marijuana plants and 24 ounces of usable 

marijuana.] 

[(b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a) of this subsection, if a registry identification cardholder 

has been convicted of a Class A or Class B felony under ORS 475.752 to 475.920 for the 

manufacture or delivery of a controlled substance in Schedule I or Schedule II, the registry 

identification cardholder or the designated primary caregiver of the cardholder may possess 

one ounce of usable marijuana at any given time for a period of five years from the date of the 

conviction.] 

[(2) A person authorized under ORS 475.304 to produce marijuana at a marijuana grow site:]  

[(a) May produce marijuana for and provide marijuana:] 

[(A) To a registry identification cardholder or a cardholder’s designated primary caregiver as 

authorizedunder this section; or] 

[(B) If the marijuana is usable marijuana or an immature marijuana plant and the registry 

identification cardholder authorizes the person responsible for the marijuana grow site to 

transfer the usable marijuana or immature marijuana plant to a medical marijuana facility 

registered under ORS475.314, to the medical marijuana facility.] 

[(b) May possess up to six mature plants and up to 24 ounces of usable marijuana for each 

cardholder or caregiver for whom marijuana is being produced.] 

[(c) May produce marijuana for no more than four registry identification cardholders or 

designated primary caregivers concurrently.] 

[(d) Must obtain and display a marijuana grow site registration card issued under ORS 

475.304 for each registry identification cardholder or designated primary caregiver for whom 

marijuana is being produced.] 

[(e) Must provide all marijuana produced for a registry identification cardholder or 

designated primary caregiver to the cardholder or caregiver at the time the person responsible 

for a marijuana grow site ceases producing marijuana for the cardholder or caregiver.] 

[(f) Must return the marijuana grow site registration card to the registry identification 

cardholder to whom the card was issued when requested to do so by the cardholder or when 

the person responsible for a marijuana grow site ceases producing marijuana for the 

cardholder or caregiver.] 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 41 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

[(3) Except as provided in subsections (1) and (2) of this section, a registry identification 

cardholder, the designated primary caregiver of the cardholder and the person responsible for 

a marijuana grow site producing marijuana for the registry identification cardholder may 

possess a combined total of up to six mature plants and 24 ounces of usable marijuana for that 

registry identification cardholder.] 

[(4)(a) A registry identification cardholder and the designated primary caregiver of the 

cardholder may possess a combined total of up to 18 marijuana seedlings or starts as defined 

by rule of the Oregon Health Authority.] 

[(b) A person responsible for a marijuana grow site may possess up to 18 marijuana seedlings 

or starts as defined by rule of the authority for each registry identification cardholder for 

whom the person responsible for the marijuana grow site is producing marijuana.] 

 

(1) Subject to subsection (2) of this section, a registry identification cardholder and the 

designated primary caregiver of the registry identification cardholder may jointly possess 

six or fewer mature marijuana plants. 

(2)(a) A person may be designated to produce marijuana under ORS 475.304 by no more 

than four registry identification cardholders. 

(b) A person who is designated to produce marijuana by a registry identification 

cardholder may produce no more than six mature marijuana plants per registry 

identification cardholder. 

(3) If the address of a person responsible for a marijuana grow site under ORS 475.304 is 

located within city limits in an area zoned for residential use: 

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this subsection, no more than 12 mature 

marijuana plants may be produced at the address; or 

(b) Subject to subsection (5) of this section, if each person responsible for a marijuana 

grow site located at the address first registered with the Oregon Health Authority under 

ORS 475.304 before January 1, 2015, no more than the amount of mature marijuana 

plants located at that address on December 31, 2014, in excess of 12 mature marijuana 

plants, not to exceed 24 mature marijuana plants, may be produced at the address. 

(4) If the address of a person responsible for a marijuana grow site under ORS 475.304 is 

located in an area other than an area described in subsection (3) of this section: 

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this subsection, no more than 48 mature 

marijuana plants may be produced at the address; or 

(b) Subject to subsections (5) and (6) of this section, if each person responsible for a 

marijuana grow site located at the address first registered with the authority under ORS 

475.304 before January 1, 2015, no more than the amount of mature marijuana plants 

located at that address on December 31, 2014, in excess of 48 mature marijuana plants, 

not to exceed 96 mature marijuana plants, may be produced at the address. 

(5) If the authority suspends or revokes the registration of a person responsible for a 

marijuana grow site that is located at an address described in subsection (3)(b) or (4)(b) 

of this section: 

(a) No more than 12 mature marijuana plants may be subsequently produced at any 

address described in subsection (3) of this section at which the person responsible for that 

marijuana grow site produces marijuana. 

(b) No more than 48 mature marijuana plants may be subsequently produced at any 

address described in subsection (4) of this section at which the person responsible for that 

marijuana grow site produces marijuana. 

(6) If a registry identification cardholder who designated a person to produce marijuana 

for the registry identification cardholder pursuant to ORS 475.304 terminates the 

designation, the person responsible for the marijuana grow site whose designation has 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 42 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

been terminated may not be designated to produce marijuana by another registry 

identification cardholder, except that the person may be designated by another registry 

identification cardholder if no more than 48 mature marijuana plants are produced at 

the address for the marijuana grow site at which the person produces marijuana. 

(7) If a law enforcement officer determines that a registry identification cardholder, the 

designated primary caregiver of a registry identification cardholder, or a person 

responsible for a marijuana grow site under ORS 475.304 who grows marijuana for a 

registry identification cardholder, possesses a number of mature marijuana plants in 

excess of the quantities specified in this section, the law enforcement officer may 

confiscate only the excess number of mature marijuana plants. 

 

SECTION 82a. (1) Except as provided in subsection (2) of this section, a registry 

identification cardholder and the designated primary caregiver of the registry 

identification cardholder may jointly possess no more than 24 ounces of usable 

marijuana. 

(2) Subject to subsection (3) of this section, a person designated to produce marijuana by 

a registry identification cardholder may possess the amount of usable marijuana that the 

person harvests from the person’s mature marijuana plants, provided that the person 

may not possess usable marijuana in excess of the amount of usable marijuana in the 

person’s possession as reported to the Oregon Health Authority under section 81a of this 

2015 Act. 

(3) A person designated to produce marijuana by a registry identification cardholder 

may not possess usable marijuana in excess of: 

(a) For a marijuana grow site located outdoors, 12 pounds of usable marijuana per 

mature marijuana plant; or 

(b) For a marijuana grow site located indoors, six pounds of usable marijuana per 

mature marijuana plant. 

 

SECTION 82b. The amendments to ORS 475.320 by section 82 of this 2015 Act apply to 

persons who registered with the Oregon Health Authority under ORS 475.304 before, on 

or after the operative date specified in section 179 of this 2015 Act. 
 

HB 3400 contains language on medical marijuana processing sites. At this time staff 

has not identified any OAR language regarding medical marijuana processing sites. 

The Planning Commission may want to include in their discussion the limitation on 

processing locations noted in HB 3400. Yellow highlighted text is applicable to 

processor locations. 
 

 

(Medical Marijuana Processors) 
 

SECTION 85. (1)(a) The Oregon Health Authority shall establish by rule a marijuana 

processing site registration system to track and regulate the processing of marijuana by a 

person responsible for a marijuana processing site. 

(b) Except as provided in paragraph (c) of this subsection, a person may not process 

marijuana unless the person is registered under this section. 

(c) Paragraph (b) of this subsection does not apply to the processing of marijuana as 

provided in sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, or as otherwise provided for 

by the statutory laws of this state. 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 43 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

(2) The registration system established under subsection (1) of this section must require 

an applicant for a marijuana processing site to submit an application to the authority 

that includes: 

(a) The name of the individual who owns the marijuana processing site or, if a business 

entity owns the marijuana processing site, the name of each individual who has a 

financial interest in the marijuana processing site; 

(b) The name of the individual or individuals responsible for the marijuana processing 

site, if different from the name of the individual who owns the marijuana processing site; 

(c) The address of the marijuana processing site; 

(d) Proof, until January 1, 2020, that each individual responsible for the marijuana 

processing 

site has been a resident of this state for two or more years, and proof that each individual 

responsible for the marijuana processing site is 21 years of age or older; 

(e) Documentation, as required by the authority by rule, that demonstrates the marijuana 

processing site meets the requirements of subsection (3) of this section; and 

(f) Any other information that the authority considers necessary. 

(3) To qualify for registration under this section, a marijuana processing site: 

(a) May not be located in an area that is zoned for residential use if the marijuana 

processing site processes cannabinoid extracts; 

(b) Must be registered as a business, or have filed an application to register as a business, 

with the office of the Secretary of State; and 

(c) Must meet the requirements of any rule adopted by the authority under subsection 

(10) of this section. 

(4)(a) The authority shall conduct a criminal records check under ORS 181.534 for each 

individual named in an application under subsection (2) of this section. 

(b) An individual convicted for the manufacture or delivery of a controlled substance in 

Schedule I or Schedule II may not own or be responsible for a marijuana processing site 

for two years from the date the individual is convicted. 

(c) An individual convicted more than once for the manufacture or delivery of a 

controlled substance in Schedule I or Schedule II may not own or be responsible for a 

marijuana processing site. 

(5) If a person submits the application required under subsection (2) of this section, if the 

marijuana processing site identified in the application meets the requirements of this 

section and any rules adopted under this section and if each individual named in the 

application passes the criminal records check required under subsection (4) of this 

section, the authority shall register the marijuana processing site and issue proof of 

registration. Proof of registration must be displayed on the premises of the marijuana 

processing site at all times. 

(6) A marijuana processing site that is registered under this section is not required to 

register with the State Board of Pharmacy under ORS 475.125. 

(7) The individual or individuals responsible for a marijuana processing site shall 

maintain documentation of each transfer of usable marijuana, medical cannabinoid 

products, cannabinoid concentrates and cannabinoid extracts. 

(8) The authority may inspect: 

(a) The premises of a proposed marijuana processing site or a registered marijuana 

processing site to ensure compliance with this section and sections 85a and 85b of this 

2015 Act and any rules adopted under this section and sections 85a and 85b of this 2015 

Act; and 

(b) The records of a registered marijuana processing site to ensure compliance with 

subsection (7) of this section. 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 44 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

(9) Subject to the provisions of ORS chapter 183, the authority may refuse to register an 

applicant under this section or may suspend or revoke the registration of a marijuana 

processing site if the authority determines that the applicant, the owner of the marijuana 

processing site, a person responsible for the marijuana processing site, or an employee of 

the marijuana processing site, violated a provision of ORS 475.300 to 475.346, a rule 

adopted under ORS 475.300 to 475.346 or an ordinance adopted pursuant to section 2, 

chapter 79, Oregon Laws 2014. 

(10) The authority shall adopt rules to implement this section, including rules that: 

(a) Require a registered marijuana processing site to annually renew the registration for 

that site; 

(b) Establish fees for registering, and renewing the registration of, a marijuana 

processing site; 

(c) Require that medical cannabinoid products, cannabinoid concentrates and 

cannabinoid extracts transferred by a marijuana processing site be tested to ensure the 

public health and safety; and 

(d) Impose any other standard on the operation of a marijuana processing site to ensure 

the public health and safety. 

 

SECTION 85a. (1) A marijuana processing site must meet any public health and safety 

standards established by the Oregon Health Authority by rule related to: 

(a) Cannabinoid edibles, if the marijuana processing site processes marijuana into 

cannabinoid edibles; 

(b) Cannabinoid concentrates, if the marijuana processing site processes marijuana into 

cannabinoid concentrates; 

(c) Cannabinoid extracts, if the marijuana processing site processes marijuana into 

cannabinoid extracts; or 

(d) Any other type of medical cannabinoid product identified by the authority by rule, if 

the marijuana processing site processes marijuana into that type of medical cannabinoid 

product. 

(2) The authority shall adopt rules to implement this section. 

 

SECTION 85b. (1) The Oregon Health Authority shall require by rule a marijuana 

processing site to submit to the authority for inclusion in the database developed and 

maintained pursuant to section 85e of this 2015 Act the following information: 

(a) The amount of usable marijuana transferred to the marijuana processing site; 

(b) The amount and type of medical cannabinoid products transferred by the marijuana 

processing site; 

(c) The amount and type of cannabinoid concentrates transferred by the marijuana 

processing site; and 

(d) The amount and type of cannabinoid extracts transferred by the marijuana 

processing site. 

(2) The authority by rule may require a marijuana processing site to submit to the 

authority for inclusion in the database developed and maintained pursuant to section 85e 

of this 2015 Act information that is in addition to the information described in subsection 

(1) of this section as the authority considers necessary to fulfill the authority’s duties 

under section 85 (1) of this 2015 Act. The authority may not employ any method other 

than that described in this section to obtain information from a marijuana processing 

site. 

 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 45 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

SECTION 85c. (1) A marijuana processing site may not transfer medical cannabinoid 

products, cannabinoid concentrates or cannabinoid extracts to a person other than a 

registry identification cardholder, a designated primary caregiver or a medical 

marijuana dispensary. 

(2) A person other than a marijuana processing site may not transfer medical 

cannabinoid products, cannabinoid concentrates or cannabinoid extracts to a medical 

marijuana dispensary. 

 

SECTION 85d. Section 85 of this 2015 Act does not apply to a registry identification 

cardholder or a person who has been designated as a primary caregiver under ORS 

475.312 who processes a medical cannabinoid product or a cannabinoid concentrate for a 

registry identification cardholder. 

 

HB 3400, Section 34 identifies marijuana as a crop for purposes of farm use, farm, 

farming practice and as farm product as noted below. 
 

SECTION 34. (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, marijuana is: 

(a) A crop for the purposes of “farm use” as defined in ORS 215.203; 

(b) A crop for purposes of a “farm” and “farming practice,” both as defined in ORS 

30.930; 

(c) A product of farm use as described in ORS 308A.062; and 

(d) The product of an agricultural activity for purposes of ORS 568.909. 

(2) Notwithstanding ORS chapters 195, 196, 197 and 215, the following are not permitted 

uses on land designated for exclusive farm use: 

(a) A new dwelling used in conjunction with a marijuana crop; 

(b) A farm stand, as described in ORS 215.213 (1)(r) or 215.283 (1)(o), used in 

conjunction 

with a marijuana crop; and 

(c) A commercial activity, as described in ORS 215.213 (2)(c) or 215.283 (2)(a), carried on 

in conjunction with a marijuana crop. 

(3) A county may allow the production of marijuana as a farm use on land zoned for 

farm or forest use in the same manner as the production of marijuana is allowed in 

exclusive farm use zones under this section and ORS 215.213 and 215.283. 

 

TIME 

 

HB 3400, Section 89 allows local government to regulate the hours of marijuana grow 

sites and processing sites. There are no additional provisions in Oregon Revised 

Statutes (ORS) or OAR’s regarding hours of operation for grow sites or processors. 

The Planning Commission may want to consider the hours required for growing 

marijuana which is likely on a 24-hour bases. For processors, the operation could be 

considered similar to an industrial operation, the Development Code does not limit 

hours. 
 

MANNER 

 

HB 3400, Section 89 allows local government to regulate the manner and access hours 

of marijuana grow sites and processing sites. There are no additional provisions in 

ORS or OAR’s regarding manner of operation for grow sites or processors. The 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 46 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

Planning Commission may want to consider if a grow site can occur outdoors or 

indoors. If outdoors what type of visual screening or security requirements should be 

established? For processors should the operation be entirely indoors? There may be 

other manners of operation the Planning Commission identifies for discussion and 

consideration. 

 

 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES 
 

HB 3400 modified the definition for schools related to medical marijuana dispensaries. 

The Bill redefines public primary and secondary schools and provides a definition for 

private and parochial schools. The former Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 457 also 

included a definition for Career School and was deleted by HB 3400. The Oregon 

Administrative Rule (OAR) Division 8 still has the definition for Career School 

(bracketed and italicized text is deleted and bold text is new). 

 
(Medical Marijuana Dispensaries) 

 

SECTION 86. ORS 475.314, as amended by section 5, chapter 79, Oregon Laws 2014, is 

amended 

to read: 

Enrolled House Bill 3400 (HB 3400-A) Page 45 

475.314. [(1) The Oregon Health Authority shall establish by rule a medical marijuana facility 

registration system to authorize the transfer of usable marijuana and immature marijuana 

plants 

from:] 

[(a) A registry identification cardholder, the designated primary caregiver of a registry 

identification cardholder, or a person responsible for a marijuana grow site to the medical 

marijuana facility; 

or] 

[(b) A medical marijuana facility to a registry identification cardholder or the designated 

primary 

caregiver of a registry identification cardholder.] 

(1)(a) The Oregon Health Authority shall establish by rule a medical marijuana 

dispensary registration system for the purpose of tracking and regulating the transfer of: 

(A) Usable marijuana, immature marijuana plants and seeds from registry identification 

cardholders, designated primary caregivers and persons responsible for marijuana grow 

sites 

to medical marijuana dispensaries; 

(B) Medical cannabinoid products, cannabinoid concentrates and cannabinoid extracts 

from persons responsible for marijuana processing sites to medical marijuana 

dispensaries; 

and 

(C) Usable marijuana, immature marijuana plants, seeds, medical cannabinoid products, 

cannabinoid concentrates and cannabinoid extracts from medical marijuana dispensaries 

to 

registry identification cardholders and designated primary caregivers. 

(b) A person may not operate an establishment for the purpose of providing the services 

described in paragraph (a) of this subsection unless the person is registered under this 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 47 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

section. 

(2) The registration system established under subsection (1) of this section must require an 

applicant for a medical marijuana [facility] dispensary to submit an application to the 

authority that 

includes: 

(a) The name of the individual who owns the medical marijuana dispensary or, if a 

business entity owns the medical marijuana dispensary, the name of each individual who 

has a financial interest in the medical marijuana dispensary; 

[(a)] (b) The name of the [person] individual or individuals responsible for the medical 

marijuana [facility] dispensary, if different from the name of the individual who owns the 

medical marijuana dispensary; 

[(b)] (c) The address of the medical marijuana [facility] dispensary; 

[(c)] (d) Proof, until January 1, 2020, that [the person] each individual responsible for the 

medical marijuana [facility is a resident of Oregon] dispensary has been a resident of this 

state for two or more years, and proof that each individual responsible for the medical 

marijuana dispensary is 21 years of age or older; 

[(d)] (e) Documentation, as required by the authority by rule, that demonstrates the medical 

marijuana [facility] dispensary meets the [qualifications for a medical marijuana facility as 

described 

in] requirements of subsection (3) of this section; and 

[(e)] (f) Any other information that the authority considers necessary. 

(3) To qualify for registration under this section, a medical marijuana [facility] dispensary: 

[(a) Must be located in an area that is zoned for commercial, industrial or mixed use or as 

agricultural land;] 

(a) May not be located in an area that is zoned for residential use; 

(b) May not be located at the same address as a marijuana grow site; 

(c) Must be registered as a business, or have filed [a pending] an application to register as a 

business, with the office of the Secretary of State; 

[(d) Must not be located within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public or private 

elementary, secondary or career school attended primarily by minors;] 

(d) May not be located within 1,000 feet of: 

(A) A public elementary or secondary school for which attendance is compulsory under 

ORS 339.020; or 

(B) A private or parochial elementary or secondary school, teaching children as described 

in ORS 339.030 (1)(a); 

(e) Must not be located within 1,000 feet of another medical marijuana [facility] dispensary; 

and 

[(f) Must comport with rules adopted by the authority related to:] 

[(A) Installing a minimum security system, including a video surveillance system, alarm system 

and 

safe; and] 

[(B) Testing for pesticides, mold and mildew and the processes by which usable marijuana and 

immature marijuana plants that test positive for pesticides, mold or mildew must be returned to 

the 

registry identification cardholder, the cardholder’s designated primary caregiver or the 

cardholder’s 

registered grower.] 

(f) Must meet the requirements of any rule adopted by the authority under subsection 

(10) of this section. 

 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 48 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

 

Staff therefore proposes the following code amendments for Medical Marijuana Grow Sites, 

Processors and a footnote modification for Dispensaries related to “Career Schools”:  

 Add Medical Marijuana Grow Sites as a permitted use for up to twelve mature plants or two 

patients in R-1, R-2, R-3 zones as indoor operations. 

 Add Medical Marijuana Grow Sites as a conditional use to all other zones. 

 Add Medical Marijuana Processors as a permitted use in all industrial zones (M-1, M-2, M-3, 

M-4, AI and SD/E). 

 Delete the definition of Career School. 

 Modify the footnote for Medical Marijuana Dispensaries in the Zoning Use Table to delete 

“Career School” and modify the public or private primary, elementary, secondary school 

references to align with new definitions in HB 3400. 

 

F. MEDICAL MARIJUANA SUBCOMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The 

Subcommittee developed the following recommendations. 

 

Marijuana Grow Sites: 

1. Allow up to twelve mature plants in residential R-1, R-2, R-3 or two patients as indoor 

operations. Above that the use would be a conditional use in all other zones. 

 

Medical Marijuana Processors: 

1. Processors be allowed in industrial zones and light manufacturing (M-1, M-2, M-3, AI, 

Springbrook District) 

 

Medical Marijuana Dispensaries: 

1.        Remove Career Schools and change the definition to adopt the new definition of 

primary/secondary and private/parochial school.  

 

G. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation 

is made in the absence of public hearing testimony, and may be modified subsequent to the 

close of the public hearing.  At this writing, staff recommends the following motion: 

 Move to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 2016-312, which recommends that the City 

Council adopt the requested amendments. 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 49 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2016-312 

 

 A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL AMEND THE 

NEWBERG DEVELOPMENT CODE REGARDING MEDICAL MARIJUANA GROW 

SITES, PROCESSORS AND DISPENSARIES   

RECITALS 

1. On March 19, 2014, Senate Bill 1531 was signed into law. SB 1531 gives local governments 

the ability to impose certain regulations and restrictions on the operation of medical marijuana 

dispensaries. 

2. House Bill (HB) 3400 was approved in the 2015 Oregon Legislative session related to 

recreational and medical marijuana. Some of the provision of HB 3400 modified the laws 

related to medical marijuana. 

3. The Newberg City Council initiated a potential amendment to Newberg's Development Code 

regarding medical marijuana grow sites and processors on December 7, 2015.  

4. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on January 14, 2016 to 

consider the amendment.  The Commission considered testimony and deliberated. 

The Newberg Planning Commission resolves as follows: 

1. The Commission finds that adding regulations for medical marijuana grow sites, medical 

marijuana processors and modifications to a footnote for medical marijuana dispensaries 

regarding Career Schools and definition of public elementary or secondary school or private or 

parochial school to align with HB 3400 would be in the best interests of the city and 

recommends that the City Council adopt the amendments to the Newberg Development Code 

as shown in Exhibit “A”.  Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “B” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "B" is by this reference 

incorporated. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 14th day of January, 2016. 

        ATTEST: 

 

Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

List of Exhibits: 

 Exhibit “A”: Development Code Text Amendments  

 Exhibit “B”:  Findings

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 50 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Resolution 2016-312 

Development Code Amendments –File DCA-15-002 

Medical Marijuana Grow Sites, Processors and Dispensaries 

 

Section 1.  The Newberg Development Code 15.05.030 shall be amended as follows: 

 

Note:   Existing text is shown in regular font. 

 Added text is shown in double-underline 

 Deleted text is shown in strikethrough. 

 

 

 15.05.030 Definitions  

 

For the purpose of this title, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 

indicates or requires a different meaning: 

 

“Medical marijuana dispensary” means a medical marijuana facility registered by the Oregon 

Health Authority and in compliance with all other provisions of Oregon law. 

 
“Medical Marijuana Grow Site” means a location registered under ORS 475.304 where marijuana is 

produced for use by a registry identification cardholder. 

 

“Medical Marijuana Processor” means a medical marijuana processing facility registered by the 

Oregon Health Authority. 

 

“School, primary or secondary category” means a category of uses under Chapter 15.303 

NMC that includes public and private schools, secular or parochial, at the primary, 

elementary, middle, junior high, or high school level that provide state mandated basic 

education primarily to minors. 

 

“School, career”, for the purposes of medical marijuana dispensaries, means any private 

proprietary professional, technical, business or other school instruction, organization or 

person that offers any instruction or training for the purpose or purported purpose of 

instructing, training or preparing persons for any profession at a physical location attended 

primarily by minors. 

 

 

Section 2.  Newberg Development Code Section 15.305.020 shall be amended as follows: 

 

15.305.020 Zoning use table  

 

 

See Exhibit A, Attachment 1 

 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 51 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Resolution 2016-312 

 

Findings –File DCA-15-002 

Medical Marijuana Grow Sites, Processors and Dispensaries 

I. Statewide Planning Goals - relevant goals 

 Goal 1, Citizen Involvement, requires the provision of opportunities for citizens to be 

 involved in all phases of the planning process.  

Finding:  The City Council initiated the potential development code amendment at a public meeting 

on December 7, 2015. The Marijuana Subcommittee meet on December 9, 2015 at a public meeting 

to review potential place, time and manner regulations for Medical Marijuana Grow Sites, Processors 

and Dispensaries. The Planning Commission, after proper notice, held a public hearing on January 

14, 2016. The City Council will consider the recommendation of the Planning Commission at a 

future public hearing date, and decide whether or not to adopt the development code amendment. 

The development code amendment process provides opportunity for public comments throughout the 

planning process.  

Goal 2, Land Use Planning, requires the development of a process and policy framework 

that acts as a basis for all land use decisions.  

Finding: The Medical Marijuana Grow Site, Processor and Dispensary proposal is supportive of this 

goal because it was developed following city procedures for legislative action. 

II. Newberg Comprehensive Plan - relevant policies 

A. CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT GOAL: To maintain a Citizen Involvement Program that 

offers citizens the opportunity for involvement in all phases of the planning process.  

 

Finding:  The City Council initiated the potential development code amendment at a public meeting 

on December 7, 2015. The Marijuana Subcommittee meet on December 9, 2015 at a public meeting 

to review potential place, time and manner regulations for Medical Marijuana Grow Sites, Processors 

and Dispensaries. The Planning Commission, after proper notice, held a public hearing on January 

14, 2016. The City Council will consider the recommendation of the Planning Commission at a 

future public hearing date, and decide whether or not to adopt the development code amendment. 

The development code amendment process provides opportunity for public comments throughout the 

planning process.  

B. LAND USE PLANNING GOAL: To maintain an on-going land use planning program to 

implement statewide and local goals. The program shall be consistent with natural and 

cultural resources and needs. 

 

Finding: The Medical Marijuana Grow Sites, Processors and Dispensaries proposal is supportive of 

this goal because it was developed following city procedures for legislative action. 

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 52 of 59 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA\2015\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors\DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.doc 

H. THE ECONOMY GOAL: To develop a diverse and stable economic base.  

1. General Policies  

c. The City will encourage the creation of a diversified employment base, the strengthening of 

trade centers and the attraction of both capital and labor intensive enterprises.  

g. The City shall encourage business and industry to locate within the Newberg City limits. 

 

Finding:  The city encourages new businesses to develop within the city. A Medical Marijuana 

Grow Sites, Processor and Dispensary operation is a legal business under State law. Allowing 

Medical Marijuana Grow Sites in residential zones R-1, R-2 and R-3 as permitted uses with up to 12 

mature plants or two patients as an indoor operation and as conditional in all other zones; allowing 

Medical Marijuana Processors as a permitted use in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4, AI and SD/E; and 

adjusting the footnote language for Medical Marijuana Dispensaries to align with HB 3400 

definitions for public, private or parochial schools, is consistent with this Comprehensive Plan goal. 

III. Conclusion:  The proposed development code amendments meet the applicable requirements 

of the Statewide Planning Goals, and the Newberg Comprehensive Plan, and should be 

approved.  

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 53 of 59 



Sections:

15.305.010    Classification of uses.

15.305.020    Zoning use table.

P

C

S

(#)

X

#
Use

R-1 R-2 R-3 R-4 SD/LDR SD/MRR RP C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 SD/NC SD/V SD/H M-1 M-2 M-3 M-4-I M-4-C SD/E CF I AR AI
Notes and 

Special UseStandards

100 AGRICULTURALUSES

Def. Horticulture P P P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1)

Def.
Livestock and poultry 

farming
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

Def.
Home gardening

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def. Home livestock and 

poultry raising
S S S NMC Title 6

200 RESIDENTIALUSES

Def. Dwelling, single-family 

detached

P(2) P P(3) P C(4) C(5) P P(6)
Subject to density limits 

of NMC15.405.010(B)

Def. Dwelling, single-family 

attached

S(2) S S(3) S C(4) C(5) P P(6)

NMC15.415.050; subject to 

density limits of 

NMC15.405.010(B)

Def.
Manufactured homeon 

individual lot
S(2) S S(3) P(7) S P(6)

NMC15.445.050 –15.445.07

0; subject to density limits of 

NMC15.405.010(B)

Def. Manufactured dwelling 

park
S S S

NMC15.445.075 –15.445.16

0

Def.
Mobile home park

S S S
NMC15.445.075 –15.445.16

0

Def.
Manufactured home 

subdivision
S S

NMC15.445.075 –15.445.16

0

Def. Dwelling, two-

family (duplex)

P(2) P P C P C(4)
P(8)/

C(5)
P

Subject to density limits 

of NMC15.405.010(B)

Def.

Dwelling, multifamily

C P P C P C(4)
P(8)/

C(5)
P

Subject to density limits 

of NMC15.405.010(B)

Def.

Dwelling, accessory
C S S S S

Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article V

Def.
Dwelling, mixed use

P(9) P(10)
P(8)/

C(5)
P(11) C C

Def.

Dwelling, caretaker

P P P C P(12)

Limited to one per lot, and 

allowed whenever 

theuse requires the on-site 

residence of such person.

Def. Dormitory C P P P

Def.
Home occupation(no 

more than one outside 

paid employee)

S S S(13) S S S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S S S(13) NMC15.415.060

Def. Home occupation(more 

than one outside paid 

employee)

C C C(13) C C C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C C C(13) NMC15.415.060

300

310

Chapter 15.305

ZONING USE 

TABLE

15.305.010 Classification of uses.

The zoning use table under NMC 15.305.020 identifies the land uses that are allowed in the various zoning districts. The specific land use categories are described in Chapter15.303 NMC. The table identifies each use as one of the 

following:

Permitted Use. The use is a permitted use within the zone. Note that 

the use still may require design review, building permits, or other 

approval in order to operate.

Conditional Use. A conditional use permitis required for the use. 

See Chapter 15.225NMC.

Special Use. The use is subject to specific standards as identified 

within this code. The applicable section is included in the last column 

of the table.

Prohibited Use. The use is specifically prohibited.

A note indicates specific limits on the use. These notes are listed at the 

bottom of the table.

If none of the codes above are indicated, then the use is not permitted within the zone. [Ord. 2763 § 1 (Exh. A § 6), 9-16-13.]

15.305.020 Zoning use table.

Exhibit A, Attachment 1 

Newberg Development Code – Zoning Use Table 

INSTITUTIONAL AND PUBLIC USES
INSTITUTIONAL CARE AND HOUSING

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 54 of 59 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg06/Newberg06.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15415.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15415.html


Def.
Family child care home

P P P(13) P(13) P P(13) P(13) P(13) P(13) P P(13) Chapter 657AORS

312 Day care P P P C P P P P C C C C P P P(14) Chapter 657AORS

Def.

Residential care 

home (5 or fewer 

people)
P P P(13) P(13) P P(13) P(13) P(13) P(13) P P(13) ORS 197.665

Def. Residential care 

facility (6 – 15 people)

C P P C P C C P ORS 197.665

315 Group care facility(16+ 

people)
C C C C C P

316 Hospital C C C C P P P

Def. Prison C C C C

320 ASSEMBLY

321 Religious institution, 

place of worship
P P P P P P P P P P(29) C P

322
Private club, lodge, 

meeting hall
C C P P C P

330 SCHOOLS

330 School, primary or 

secondary
P P P P C

331 College P P P P P P P(15) C P

332
Commercial educational 

services
C C C C P P P C

340
PARKS AND OPEN 

SPACEs

341 Open space P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

342 Park P P P P P P P P P P(16) P(17) P

Def. Golf course P P P P(17)

350 PUBLIC SERVICES

351 Community services C C C C P P P P C P

352 Emergency services P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def. Pound, dog or cat C C C P P C C

Def. Cemetery C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C Chapter 97.46ORS

360 TRANSPORTATION

Def. Transportation facilities 

and improvements

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def. Transit center P P P P P P

Def. Parking facility P C C P P(18) C P P P P P

Def. Airport, landing field C C P

Def. Heliport, helipad C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P

Def. Marina C

Pilings, piers, docks, and 

similar in-

waterstructures

C

370 UTILITIES
Def. Basic utilities P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def.
Utility distribution plant 

or yard
P P P

Def.
Wastewater treatment 

plant
C P C

Def.

Telecommunication 

facility incorporated 

into existing 

structure/utility pole 

and no taller than 18 

feet above existing 

structure/utility pole

C C C C C S S S S S S S S S S
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article IV

Def.

Telecommunication 

facility, 

includingradio towers and 

transmitters, which are 100 

feet or less in height, except 

those incorporated into an 

existingstructure no taller 

than 18 feet above 

that structure.

C C C C S(19) S(19) P C C
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article IV

Def.

Telecommunication 

facility, 

includingradio towers and 

transmitters, which are over 

100 feet

C C C C C C C C C
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article IV

400 COMMERCIAL USES
410 COMMERCIAL OFFICES

411 Medical office C P P(20) P P(21) P

412
Local business office

P(22) P(20) P P(21)

420

421 Retail sales – General P(20) P
P(15) 

(21)
P P(23)

422
Retail sales – Bulk 

outdoor
P C P

423
Retail sales – 

Convenience
P(20) P P(21) P P(24) P(25)

Def. Temporary merchant S S(21) NMC5.15.050 et seq.

Medical marijuana 

dispensary
P(35) P(35)

COMMERCIAL SALES AND RENTALS

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 55 of 59 

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=657a
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=657a
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=197.665
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=197.665
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=97.46
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg05/Newberg0515.html


425
Retail food and 

beverage production
S S

Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article VIII

430

430
Eating and drinking – 

Alcohol-related
P P(21) P Requires liquor license

430
Eating and drinking – Non-

alcohol-related
P(20) P P(21) P P P C(26)

440
COMMERCIAL SERVICES

441 Personal services P P(20) P P(21) P

442 Commercial services P(20) P P(21)

443
Commercial vehicle 

service
P C P(27) P P(28)

Def. Kennel, commercial C C C P P C C

450

451
Commercial recreation 

– Indoors
P P(15) P(29) P(29)

452 Commercial recreation 

– Outdoors

P C

453 Commercial recreation 

– Motor-vehicle-related

C C(33)

460 COMMERCIAL LODGING

Def.
Vacation rental home

C C S S S S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13)
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article VII

Def.
Bed and breakfast(2 or 

fewer rooms)
C S S S S S S S NMC15.445.010

Def. Bed and breakfast(3 or 

more rooms)
C C C C C S S S NMC15.445.010

Def. Hotel or motel P P(15) P C(26)

Def.
Recreational vehicle 

park
C C C C C NMC15.445.170

500 INDUSTRIAL USES

501 Traded sector industry 

office
P(30) P(30) P P P P P P(33)

502 Industrial services C P P P P(33)

503
Wholesale and industry 

sales
C(31) P(31) P P P P(33)

504
Warehouse, storage, 

and distribution
P(32) P P P P(33)

505
Self-service storage

P P P P P

506 Light manufacturing P P P P P(33)

507
Heavy manufacturing

P(34) P C

508 Waste-related C C

Medical Marijuana 

Processor
P P P P P P

600 MISCELLANEOUS USES

Def.

Accessory 

buildingand use incidental 

to other permitted usesin the 

zone

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Uses similar to 

permitted uses in the zone 

and not defined or 

categorized

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Uses similar to 

conditional uses in the zone 

and not defined or 

categorized

C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C

Medical Marijuana Grow  

Site
P(36) P(36) P(36) C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C

Key:

P: Permitted use S: Special use – Use requires a special use permit

X: Prohibited use (#): See notes for limitations

Notes.

(10) Permitted above any permitted use in the C-2 zone. There shall be no density limitation. Parking shall be provided in private parking areas or garages on the basis of oneparking space for each dwelling unit.

(7) The homes are not subject to the development standards set forth in NMC 15.445.050 through 15.445.070.

(4) The permitted density shall be stated on the conditional use permit.

(3) Permitted on individual lots created prior to November 17, 1992. Homes on individual lots created on or after November 17, 1992, will only be permitted through the planned unit development process.

(2) Limited to one per lot as a permitted use. More than one per lot allowed only through a conditional use permit or planned unit development, subject to density limits of NMC15.405.010(B).

(13) Permitted in existing dwelling units only. New dwelling units may not be created for this use unless the dwelling unit would otherwise be allowed.

(12) One residence of area not more than 40 percent of the area of the hangar floor, up to a maximum of 1,500 square feet, for an airport caretaker or security officer on each separate parcel.

(11) Must be located above ground floor commercial uses.

(9) Permitted on the ground floor, one per lot in conjunction with any other use permitted or conditional use in the C-1 zone. On upper floors, dwelling units are unlimited and oneparking space per dwelling unit is required.

C: Conditional use – Requires a conditional use permit

(5) The dwelling units must front onto Hancock or Second Street. No more than 30 percent of a single street frontage of a block may be occupied by residential uses. Contiguous residential street frontage must be less than 60 

lineal feet. Density and parking standards for allowable dwelling units must be met.

(6) One residence per lot with the addition of a tie-down or hangar for an airplane. At a minimum, a paved tie-down or hangar shall be provided on the property, or the property shall include permanent rights to a private hangar within 

the subdivision. See Chapter 15.336 NMC.

(8) The units must be located on the same lots as another use permitted or conditionally permitted in the C-3 zone and may not occupy the first floor storefront area (the portion of the building closest to the primary street). There shall 

be no density limitation. Private parking areas or garages are not required for dwelling units located within buildings in existence prior to and including June 30, 1999. Parking shall be provided for all new dwelling units within 

any building constructed after June 30, 1999, in private parking areas or garages on the basis of one parking space for each dwelling unit.

(1) Limited to sites with preexisting agricultural uses, including at time of annexation.

EATING AND DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS

COMMERCIAL RECREATION

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 56 of 59 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html


(20) Businesses in the C-1 zone that have hours of operation between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. require a conditional use permit.

1    Code reviser’s note: Section 25 of Ordinance 2763 provides:

SECTION 25: Grace period for previously permitted or conditional uses. Where an applicant demonstrates that a particular use was a permitted or conditional use on a specific property immediately 

prior to adoption of this ordinance, but that the use is no longer either a permitted or conditional use on that property due to this ordinance, the applicant may establish the use as either a permitted or 

conditional use, as provided in the prior code, provided the use is legally commenced prior to January 1, 2018.

(36) Allows up to 12 mature plants or two patients; indoor operations.

(26) Use must demonstrate that it is compatible with airport operations.

(14) Allowed exclusively for employers or employees of businesses located within this district.

(19) A conditional use permit is required if the facility is less than 2,000 feet from the nearest telecommunication facility.

(18) Parking garages are a conditional use, and must have first floor street frontage of 40 feet or less for ingress or egress. First floor development must be commercial.

(17) Limited to facilities owned or operated by a public agency.

(16) Allowed in areas designated in industrial area plans.

(15) Facility over 40,000 square feet gross floor area requires a conditional use permit.

(21) Drive-up service windows accessory to an existing business on the site with walk-in customer service, such as a drive-up bank window, are allowed only with a conditional use permit. Otherwise, drive-up 

service windows, except those in service on April 1, 2002, are prohibited. Changes in use will not be allowed.

(35) Shall not be located at the same address as a state-registered marijuana grow site, or within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public park, a public elementary or secondary school for 

which attendance is compulsory under ORS 339.020 or a private or parochial elementary or secondary school, teaching children as described in ORS 339.030 (1)(a) public or private primary, elementary, 

secondary or career school. Distance is measured in a straight line in a radius extending for 1,000 feet or less in any direction from the closest point anywhere on the boundary line of the real property 

comprising an existing public park, public elementary or secondary school or a private or parochial elementary or secondary school private elementary, secondary or career school to the closest point of 

the premises of a dispensary. The premises consist of the dispensary building, or the portion of the building used for a dispensary. Shall not be located within 1,000 feet of another medical marijuana 

dispensary. Operating hours are limited to the hours between 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.

(34) Limited to expansion or change of existing heavy manufacturing uses.

(33) Must be aviation-related. See Chapter 15.332 NMC.

(32) Allowed indoors only. Outdoor use requires a conditional use permit.

(31) Allowed indoors only.

(30) Limited to 10,000 square feet maximum floor area.

(29) Permitted provided the structure is designed for easy conversion to industrial use, including not having fixed seating.

(28) Limited to card lock fueling only. Retail services are limited to self-vending services.

(27) Limited to service stations.

(25) Store size is limited to 5,000 square feet gross floor area.

(24) Store size is limited to 2,000 square feet gross floor area.

(23) Limited to secondhand stores.

(22) Retail sales of goods on site not allowed.

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 57 of 59 



RESOLUTION No. 2015-3244-so* City of

lewberg

A RESOLUTION INITIATING AN AMENDMENT TO THE NEWBERG
MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 15 DEVELOPMENT CODE FOR TIME, PLACE
AND MANNER REGULATIONS FOR MEDICAL MARIJUANA GROWERS
AND PROCESSORS

RECITALS:

1. The Oregon Legislature enacted four bills during the 2015 legislative session related to the Oregon
Medical Marijuana Act and Measure 91. House Bill (HB) 3400 was the omnibus bill covering
recreational marijuana and modifications to the medical marijuana program.

2. The Oregon Health Authority adopted temporary OAR’s on September 22, 2015 for revisions to
the medical marijuana program under Chapter 333, Division 8.

3. On September 8, 2015 the Newberg City Council was provided background information on medical
and recreational marijuana at its Work Session. At its Business Session on September 8th the City
Council established the Marijuana Subcommittee (Subcommittee) comprised of Councilors Rourke,
Bacon and McKinney along with nonvoting member Mayor Andrews.

4. The Subcommittee met on November 19, 2015 to review the similarities and differences between the
medical marijuana and recreational marijuana programs. The Subcommittee was briefed that the
operational date for the medical marijuana modifications in HB 3400 is March 1, 2016. The
Subcommittee was also provided a timeline of dates and activities that would need to occur to
prepare time, place and manner land use regulations for medical marijuana growers and processors.

5. The Subcommittee passed a motion 3-0 directing staff to create an RCA to initiate the Development
Code Amendment for medical marijuana grower and processor regulations to bring forward for
Council consideration on December 7.

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

1. The City Council initiates an amendment to the Newberg Municipal Code, Title 15 Development
Code for Time, Place and Manner Regulations for Medical Marijuana Growers and Processors. This
starts the public process to study the proposed amendments.

2. By initiating this amendment, the council does not commit to taking any specific action on the
proposal. It only wishes to give the amendment full consideration in a public hearing.

CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2015-3244 PAGE 1

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 58 of 59 



EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: December 8, 2015
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 7th day of December, 2015.

,:fk /
Sue Ryan, City Recorder

ATTEST by the Mayor this 10th day of December, 2015.

CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2015-3244 PAGE 2

Planning Commission Meeting
Page 59 of 59 


	Planning Commission DCA-15-002 Packet.pdf
	DCA-15-002 Medical Marijuana Grower-Processors FInal PC staff report.docx.pdf
	Marijuana Zoning Use Table Expanded.xlxs.pdf
	Res3244.pdf




